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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
WESTERN DISTRICT OF WASHINGTON

AT SEATTLE
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, )  NO. CR99-666C
)
Plaintiff, )
) MEMORANDUM OF LAW IN
vs. )  SUPPORT OF DEFENDANT’S
)  MOTIONFOR JUDGMENT OF
AHMED RESSAM, ) ACQUITTAL ON COUNT 7
) \
Defendant. )
)

)
NOW COMES the defendant, Ahmed Ressam, by undersigned counsel, and asks this

Court to consider the following memorandum of law in support of his motion for judgment of
acquittal pursuant to Fed. R. Crim. P. 29(a).
FACTS

Count 7 of the Second Superseding Indictment alleges:
(Transportation of Explosives)

On or about December 14, 1999, at Port Angeles, in the Western District of
Washington, AHMED RESSAM and ABDELMAJID DAHOUMANE, not being
licensees or permittees under the provisions of Chapter 40 of Title 18 of the
United States Code, knowingly transported and shipped, and caused to be
transported and shipped, in Interstate and foreign commerce, from Canada into the
United States, explosive materials, that is, hexamethylene triperoxide diamine,

cyclotrimethylene trinitramine, and a nitroglycerine equivalent identified as
ethylene glycol dinitrate.

MEMORANDUM OF LAW IN SUPPORT OF FEDERAL PUBLIC DEFENDER

DEFENDANT'S MOTION FOR JUDGMENT OF 111 Third avenue Suice oy
ACQUITTAL ON COUNT 7 (AHMED RESSAM) 1 S a06) £53.1100
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All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 842(a)(3)(A); 844(a); and 2.
ARGUMENT

The defendant’s Motion for Judgement of Acquittal on Count 7 must be granted because

Mr. Ressam’s conduct fits within 18 U.S.C. § 845, a statutory exception to the charged offense.

In United States v. Petrvkievicz, 809 F. Supp. 794 (W.D. Wash. 1992),' the Court, relying on

United States v. Illingworth, 489 ¥.2d 264 (10" Cir. 1973), held that the 18 U.S. C. § 845

exception to 18 U.S.C. §§ 842(a)(3XA) and 844(a) is applicable when the Departinent of
Transportation regulates explosive materials. 809 F. Supp. at 799. The Department of
Transportation regulates the three explosive materials carried by Mr. Ressam on the ferry vessel.
Accordingly, the government cannot convict Mr. Ressam of 18 U.S.C. §§ 842(2)(3)(A) and
844(a) and Mr. Ressam must be acquitted of the violations alleged in Count 7.

Chapter 40 of Title 18 of the United States Code contains statutes regulating the
importation, manufacture, distribution, and storage of explosive materials. Chapter 40 consists
of sections 841 through 848 of Title 18. Sections 842(a)(3)(A) and 844(a) of Title 18, the
violations alleged in Count 7 of the indictment, proscribe the transportation of explosives in
interstate or foreign commerce. Congress, however, also created an exception to the application
of those sections of Chapter 40. Title 18 US.C., § 845, entitled “Exceptions; relief from
disabilities,” provides, in pertinent part:

(a) Except in the case of subsections (1), (m), (n), or (o) of § 842 and subsections

(d), (e), (D), (g).(h), (i), of section 844 of this title, this chapter [i.e.. Chapter 40]
shall not apply to:

(1) any aspect of the transportation of explosive materials via railroad, water.
highway, or air which are regulated by the United States Department of
Transportation and agencies thereof, and which pertain to safety:

18 U.S.C. § 845(a)(1) (emphasis added). In enacting this excepuon, Congress intended that

certain provisions of Chapter 40, including §§ 842(a)(3)(A), and 844(a), would not be applicable

! For the Court’s convenience, a copy of United States v. Petrykievicz, 809 F. Supp. 794 (W.D.
Wash. 1992), is appended hereto as Attachment A.
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to aspects of the transportation of explosive materials regulated by the Deparument of
Transportation. H. Rep. No. 91-1549, 91st Cong., 2d Sess. 2 (1970), reprinted in 1970 U.S.
Code Cong. and Admin. News 4047.

Thus, under § 845(a)(1), a person cannot be convicted of a violation of Chapter 40 for
conduct which is regulated by the Department of Transportation, unless the charge falls within
the enumerated sub-sections for which prosecution is still permitted. The conduct which forms
the basis of the charge and evidence in Count 7 of the indictment against Mr. Ressam, the
transportation of the listed chemicals, is regulated by the Department of Transportation. See,
eg..49CFR.§172.101 (1999). The Department of Transportation regulates many aspects of
the transportation in interstate and foreign commerce of the explosives allegedly transported by

Mr. Ressam.® Therefore, his conduct falls within the exception to Chapter 40 violations created

2 A copy of the relevant pages of the table in 49 C.F.R. § 172.101 (1999) that reflect the
Department of Transportation’s regulation of these materials is annexed hereto as Attachment B.

3 Among the many regulatons promulgated by the Department of Transportation that would
apply 10 Mr. Ressam’s conduct are the following:

49 C.FR. §172.1 lists and classifies those materials which the Department of
Transportation has designated as hazardous materials for purposes of transportation and
prescribes the requirements for shipping papers, package marking, labeling, and
transport vehicle placarding. See, Atachment C.

49 C.F.R.§172.101 1s the Hazardous Materials Table (Table) that lists Hexamethylene

Triperoxide Diamine, Ethylene Glycol Dinitrate, and Cyclotrimethylene Trinitramine
as regulated materials. See, Attachment B.

49 C.FR.§176.1 prescribes additional requirements with respect to the transportation
of hazardous materials by vessel. See, Attachment D.

49 C.F.R. §176.3(b) states that a carrier may not transport by vessel any explosive or
explosive composition described as forbidden for transportation by the Department of
Transportation. See, Attachment E.

49 C.F.R. §176.88 states that regulations apply to vehicles containing hazardous
materials being transported on board ferry vessels. See, Attachment F.

MEMORANDUM OF LAW IN SUPPORT OF FEDERAL PUBLIC DEFENDER
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by Congress in § 845(a)(1), and Count 7 of the indictment must be dismissed.

In United Szates v. Petrvkievicz, Judge Zilly granted the defendant’s motion for judgment

of acquittal of a count charging the identical offense charged in Count 7 of the indictment against
Mr. Ressam, i.e., §§ 842(2)(3)(A), and 844(a), based on precisely the same argument raised

herein. To that point, the only circuit court that had analyzed this issue was United States v.

Tlingworth, 489 F.2d 264 (10th Cir. 1973),* which had reached the same result.

Like Mr. Ressam, the defendant in Petrykeivicz was charged with knowingly transporting
and shipping and causing to be wansported and shipped in foreign commerce an explosive
material. On a commercial flight from London, England to Seattle, Washington, Mr. Petrykeivicz
carried a safety fuse and approximately one pound of explosive materials, pentaerythritol
tetranitrate (PETN), in his luggage. 809 F.Supp. at 795. Applying §845's exception, Judge Ziily
dismissed the counts against Mr. Petrykievicz alleging criminal violations under U.S.C. §§
842(a)(3)(A) and 844(a). The Court stated that “[iJt is undisputed that the Department of
Transportation regulates some aspects of the transportation of explosive materials, including
PETN and safety fuses.” Id. at 796. The Court reasoned that because some aspects of the
transportation of explosives are regulated by the Department of Transportation, the exception
of §845 applies to all aspects of the transportation of explosive materials. Id. Although the Court
concluded that §845 is ambiguous, the Court applied the rule of lenity in the construction of the
statute and concluded that the Department of Transportation’s regulation of the explosive

materials made the exception applicable. Id. at 799.

49 C.F.R §176.90 prohibits a privale automobile which is carrying any Class |
(explosive) material from being wransported on a passenger-carrying ferry vessel unless
the Class 1 (explosive) material is in compliance with the Department of
Transportation’s packaging, labeling, marking, and certification requirements. See,
Aunachment G.

% For the Court’s convenience, a copy of United States v. lllingworth, 489 F.2d 264 (10" Cir.
1973), is appended hereto as Antachment H.
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In Illingworth, the Tenth Circuit applied §845's exception to a prosecution commenced
under the same statute involved here, 18 U.S.C. §842 (2)(3). The defendant in [llingworth was
charged with transporting dynamite in interstate commerce. The Tenth Circuit held that §345's
exception prohibited the defendant’s conviction under §842(a)(3)(A) because the transportation
of dynamite — like the transportation of ethylene slycol dinitrate, hexamethylene triperoxide
diamine, and cyclotrimethylene trinitramine — is regulated by the Department of Transportation.
Illingworth, 489 F.2d at 265-66. In reaching its decision the lllingworth Court tracked the
various statutory and regulatory provisions providing the Department of Transportation with the
authority to regulate the transportation of certain explosives. Thus, the Court concluded that:

(t}here is no ambiguity in the statutory exception; nor is there any question of the

existence of alternative statutes open to the prosecution in this case by reason of

the explicit exception in 18 U.S.C. §845(a)(1) to Section 842's application.

Congress has provided this exception to permit regulation by appropriate

authorities and they have done so.

Illingworth, 489 F 2d a1 266. Because § 845's “exception refers to materials which are regulated
by the Department, Illingworth, 489 F.2d at 265 (emphasis in original), Mr. Illingworth could
not be convicted under § 842(a)(3). Just as the dynamite that Mr. {llingworth carried on an
airplane fell within § 845's exception, so too does the ethylene glycol dinitrate, hexamethylene
riperoxide diamine, and cyclotrimethylene trinitramine allegedly carried by Mr. Ressam.

Subsequently, the Ninth Circuit has implicitly approved the reasoning of Nlingworth and
Petrvkievicz, although declining to apply the exception to the facts before it. United States v.
Fiorillo, 186 F.3d 1136, 1153 (9th Cir. 1999). In Fiorillo, the defendant was receiving
explosives without a license. The § 845(a)(1) exception did not apply because that exception “by
its own terms only applies to the transportation of explosives, not the receipt of explosives.” Id.
On this basis, the Ninth Circuit distinguished Ilingworth and Petrykievicz, which did relate to
transportation, id. at 1153 n. 29; this same distinction applies to Mr. Ressam. Whereas the
defendant in Fiorillo “interpret[ed] the exception too broadly,” id. at 1153, Mr. Ressam comes

squarely within its terms, as construed by the Ninth Circuit.

MEMORANDUM OF LAW IN SUPPORT OF FEDERAL PUBLIC DEFENDER
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The Secretary of Transportation has been specifically empowered to designate materials
as hazardous and to prescribe rules and regulations for the safe transportation of hazardous
materials in intrastate, interstate, and foreign commerce. 49 U.S.C. §5103. In accordance with
this power, the Secretary of Transportation has designated a number of “hazardous materials,”
including explosives, which are regulated or forbidden from transportation on vessels. 49 CFR
§172.101; 49 CF.R. §176.3(b). The Code of Federal Regulations includes a table designating
these regulated materials. 49 CFR §172.101. Hexamethylene triperoxide diamine,
cyclotrimethylene trinitramine, and ethylene glycol dinitrate are among the list of hazardous
materials regulated by the Department of Transportation. Id.

The regulations provide that hexamethylene triperoxide diamine and ethylene glycol
dinitrate are absolutely forbidden from transportation on vessels. 49 C.F.R. §176.3(b). The
regulations classify cyclotrimthylene trinitramine as a Division 1.1 explosive with a mass
cxplosion hazard. §172.101; see generally lllingw orth, 489 F.2d at 265 (noting that §845's
exception applies 1o aspects of the transportation of explosives that “are regulated by the
Department,”and not just 1o the explosives that are prohibited.) As the Court in Illingworth
explained, Congress enacted § 845's exception to permit regulation of the transportation of
explosives by the appropriate authorities; namely, the Department of Transportation. As in
Tlingworth, the Department has done what Congress envisioned by regulating the transportation
of the explosives carried by Mr. Ressam.

On the facts of this case, the government can and did charge criminal violations for the
illegal carrying, using and possessing of explosives. Count 2 of the Second Superseding
Indicunent charges Mr. Ressam with placing an explosive in close proximity to a terminal.
Count 6 of the Indictment charges Mr. Ressam with smuggling explosives into the United States.
Count 8 of the Indictment charges Mr. Ressam with possession of an unregistered destrucuive
device. Moreover, Congress has provided criminal penalties for bringing explosives or

dangerous weapons aboard vessels, but the government has chosen notto file under that specific

MEMORANDUM OF LAW IN SUPPORT OF FEDERAL PUBLIC DEFENDER
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statute. See Title 18 U.S.C. §2277 (making it a crime for a person to bring, carry, or possess an
explosive article or compound on board any vessel registered under the laws of the United
States).” The offense alleged in Count 7 of the indictment is one specifically excepted from
application in this case by §845(a)(1).

Though alternative statutes existed for the prosecution in this case, Count 7 must be
dismissed because Mr. Ressam’s conduct falls within the § 845 exception to the offense charged.
The transportation of these materials is an aspect of transportation regulated by the Department
of Transportation. Accordingly, Mr. Ressam may not be convicted of violating § 842(a)(3)(A).
The Court is therefore requested 1o enter a judgment of acquittal as to Count 7 of the Second

Superseding Indicument.

2 Al
DATED this 2 day of _/1 /27 /2001

Respectfully submitted,
NS 7
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- Thomas W. Hillier; 11
Federal Public Defender
Attorney for Ahmed Ressam

)

LI //1 S / _
= Ay - e e
//z/"/s{/ // - ,)-"’

" Michadl Filipovic— -
Assistant Federal Public Defender
Attorney for Ahmed Ressam

“Jo Ann Oliver T

Assistant Federal Public-Defender
Attorney for Ahmed | Ressam

5 The § 845 exception also did not prohibit government from prosecuting under 18 US.C. &
844(d), which makes it a cnme 10 Transport explosives under circumstances similar to those alleged in
Count 1. but without the requirement that the conduct transcend national boundaries.
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United States District Court,
W.D. Washington,
at Seattle.

UNITED STATES of America, Plaintiff,
V.
Oliver Stefan PETRYKIEVICZ, Defendant.

No. CR92-290Z.
Decc. 14, 1992.

Defendant charged with knowingly transperting and
shipping an explosive material in foreign commerce,
importing that explosive material into the United
States, and making false statcment to cusioms
inspectors moved for judgment of acquittal on the first
wo counts. The District Court, Zilly, T, held that
defendant's case fell within starutory exception for
aspects of rransportation of explosive materials via air

that were regulated by United States Department ot

Transportation (DOT).
Morion granted.
West Headnotes

{1] Statutes €&=212.7
361k212.7
(Formerly 361k212)

There is strong presumption that Congress expresses its
intent through the language it uses in sratute.

[2] Statures S=217.4
361k217.4

When swatutory language 1s clear, courts should
consider legislative history only to determine whether
there is clearly expressed legislauve history to the
contrary

(3| Explosives &=4
164k4

Defendant found in possession of safety fuse and
approximately onc pound of explosive materials
containing pentaerythritol tewamtrate (PETN) after
having arrived in United States from England could not
be charged with knowingly transporting -and shipping
explosive material in foreign commertce and importing
that explosive material into the United States:
defendant's conduct fell within statutory exception for
aspects of transportation of explosive materials via air

+2138843923 T-333 P.09/23 F-561
Page 1

that were regulated by the United States Department of
Transportation (DOT). 18 US.CA. §§ 545,
842(a)(3)A), 845(a)(1); Federal Aviation Act of 1958,
§ 101(23), 49 AppUSCA. § 1301(23)
Transportation Safety Act of 1974, § 103(2), 49
App.U.S.C.A. § 1802(2).

[4] Statutes &=>241(1)
361k241(1)

"Rule of lenity” requires that where there is ambiguity
in criminal statute, doubrts are to be resolved in favor of
defendant.

*798 Susan B. Dohrmann, Asst. U.S. Ay, Seatle,
WA, for plainuff.

Robert Steven Mahler, Fcderal Public Defender,
Seattle, WA, for defendant.

ORDER
ZILLY, Distict Judge.

L
INTRODUCTION

THIS MATTER comes before the Court on the
defendant's motion for judgment of acquitiz] of Counts
1 and Il of the Superseding Indicument pursuant to
Fed.R.CrimP. 29. Count I charged that the defendant,
not being a licensee or permitree under the provisions
of Chapter 40 of Title 18, knowingly mransported and
shipped and caused 1o be transported and shipped in
foreign  commerce an  explosive  matenal
(approximartely one pound of PETN) in violation of 18
U.S.C. §§ 841(c) and (d), 842(a)(3)(A), and 844(a).
Defendant was charged in Count II with importing this
same explosive material into the United States contrary
to law, in violation of 18 U.S.C. Secuion 545 The
defendant was also charged in Count III with making a
false stalement 10 a customs inspector Al mil, the
defendant moved to have the Indicmment dismissed
pursuant to Rule 29,  The Court denied the motton as
to Count Il and deferred a ruling on the mortion for
judgment of acquittal on Counts I and 11 unul the
parties could fully brief the issues presented. After
trial, the jury found the detfendant guilty of Counts 1
and [ and not guilty of Count Il On November 24,
1992, the Court heard oral argument on defendants
motion for judgment of acquittal.  The Court then rook
the motion under advisement. For the reasons staled in
this order, the Court GRANTS the detendant’'s motion
and DISMISSES Counts I and 1I of the Superseding
Indictment.

Copr. @ West 2001 No Claimwo Ong. US Govt. Works
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1I.
ANALYSIS

The defendant was arrested on May 26, 1992 at the
Seartle-Tacoma International Airport, having arrived
on United Airlines Flight # 933 from London, England.
Al the time of his arrest, the defendant had in his
possession a safety fuse and approximately one (1)
pound of cxplosive materials containing pentaerythritol
teaaniwate, cornmonly referred to as PETN.

Title 18, United States Code, Chapter 40, contains
statutes relating to the importation, manufacture,
diswibution, and storage of explosive materials. 18
U.S.C. §§ 841-848. Defendant was charged in Count]
with a violation of 18 U.S.C. § 842(a)(3)(A) which
provides in pertinent part that:

(a) It shall be unlawful for any person--

(3) other than a licensee or permitiee knowingly--

(A) to mansport, ship, cause to be wansported, or

receive in interstate or foreign commerce any

explosive marterials....

Administration of Chapter 40 is vested in the Secretary

of the Treasury or his delegate. 18 U.S.C. § 841(k).
The defendant was charged in Count II with importing
and bringing a safery fuse and explosive materials into
the Unired States "contrary 1o law" in violation of 18
US.C. § 545, The Governments Superseding
Indictment relies upon §§ 18 U.S.C. § 841(c) and (d),
842(a)(3)(A), and 844(a) to satisfy the "contrary to
law" portion of the charge in Count I, As a result, the
defendant's arguments relating to the application of
Section 8§45 will be critical as to both counts.

*796 The defendant contends that he must be
acquitted of the charges in Counts I and II because his
conduct falls within the exception to Chapter 40
violations conwmined in 18 U.S.C. § 845(a)(1).
Entitled "Exceptions; relief from disabiliies,” §
$45(a)(1) provides as follows:
(a) Except in the case of subsecuons (d), (e), (1),
(), (h), and (1) of section 844 of this utle, this
chapter shall not apply fo:
(1) any aspect of the transportation of explosive
materials via railroad, warter, highway, or air which
are regulated by the United States Department of
Transportation and agencies thereof;

It 1s undisputed that the Deparmment of Transportation
regulates some aspects of the ansportation of
explosive materials, including PETN and safety fuses.
See, e.g.. 49 US.C.App. § 1472(h)(2) (makes unlawful
the willful delivery 1o an air carrier for fransportation

+2138843823 T-333 P.10/23 F-581
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baggage which contains a hazardous material in
violation of any rulc or regulation promulgated by the
Deparmment of Transportation); 49 C.F.R. § 171.3(a)
(prohibits the offer for transportation of hazardous
materials unless properly described, packaged, marked,
labeled, and in condition for shipment as required by
regulations); 49 CFR. § 173.27(b) (prohub:ts the
wansportation by passcnger-carrying aircraft of certain
hazardous materials, including PETN, idennified in the
section 172.101 Table as "forbidden"); 49 C.F.R. §
173.27(c) (describes requircments for ransportation of
hazardous materials, including safety fuses, that are not
forbidden from air transportation).

Although the Department of Transportation regulates
many aspects of the transportation of explosive
materials, it does not regulate licensing requirements
relating to explosive materials. License applications
and requirements 0 "import, manufacture, or deal in
explosive materials” are governed by 18 U.S.C. § 841
et seq. and the regulations promulgated by the
Secretary of the Treasury. Unired States v. Guess, 629
F.2d 573, 575 (9th Cir.1980); 18 U.S.C. § 843; 27
C.F.R. Part 55, Commerce in Explosives.

Defendants motion to dismiss 1s based on the
exception contained in 18 US.C. § 845. Defendant
contends that because some aspects of the
ransportation of explosive marterials are regulated by
the Department of Transportation, that the exception
applies 1o all aspects of the ransportation of explosive
materials.  Brief of Defendant in Support of Motion
for Judgment of Acquirtal on Counts I and I, ar 16. In
effect, the defendant reads § 845(a)(1) as a preemption
clause.

The defendant telies on United Stares v. Ilingworth,
489 F.2d 264 (10th Cir.1973), the only Circuit Cournt
opimon to analyze the statutory exception involved
here. In [llingworth, the defendant took an airplane
flight from Pocatello, Idaho to Salt Lake City, Utah
and from Salt Lake City to Denver, Colorado while
carrying a handbag contammmg  dynamite. Like
Penykicvicz, [lingworth was charged under 18 US.C,
§ 842(a)(3) with ansporung explosive matenals. via
air, without a hicense. See lllingworth's Indictment,
Exhibit B 10 Defendant's Brief, docket no. 86. The
issue  presented n fllingworth was whether the
defendant could be prosecuted under § 842 1n the face
of the exception contained in § 845. The court stated
that "the exception refers to materials which are
regulated by the Department" of Transportation.
(Emphasis by Court.) Id at 265 Because explosives
were regulated by the Department of Transportanoen,

Copr & West 2001 No Claim to Orig. U.S. Govt. Warks
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the Tenth Circuit concluded that llingworth could not
be prosecuted under Chapter 40 by reason of “the
"clearly provided exception to its application.” ld at
266. The Illingworth court, finding no ambiguity in
the statutory exception contained in § 845, reasoned
that
. it is clear that the dynamite which Illingworth
carried with him on the planes was not omly
regulated, but also excluded from the range of
"acceptable”  explosives  that, in  cerain
circumstances, could be camied on board
passenger-carrying aircraft, by 14 C.ER. § 103.7
(1973).

Id. ar 265.

The Jllingworth court therefore dismissed the
indictment against that the defendant *797 based on the
exception conmained in § 84S. The facts in [llingworth
arc almost identical to the facts in the present case.
The decision by the Tenth Circuit is, howcver, not
binding on this Court.

The Goverament argues the [llingworth court "failed
to understand the essence of the charge" and i any
event was wrongly decided. The Government argues,
citing Unired States v. Scharstein, 531 F.Supp. 460,
466 (E.D Ky.1982), that because licensing is not an
aspect of wansportation which is rcgulated by the
Department of Transportation, the exception m §
845(a)(1) does not apply. In Scharstein. the defendant
was convicted of illegally manufacturing, storing and
wansporting illegal explosives in violation of 18 U.S.C.
§ 841 ez seq. Scharstein contended that because these
activities were regulated by the Department of
Transportation, they were not subject to crimunal
prosecution under 18 US.C. § 841 ez seq.  The
Scharstein court found that "the key word m
constructing the meaning of § 845 was the word
aspect.’ " Id ar 466. The Scharstein court held that
the aspect of licensing the ransportation of cxplosive
materials was covered by the Department of Treasury
and the aspect of labeling, packaging, mode of
mansportation, placarding and shipping papers was
regulated by the Department of Transportation
regulanions. The Scharstein court then concluded that
the defendant had been charged with conduct involving
the wansportation of explosives withour a license which
was governed by 18 U.S.C § 841 er seq., rcasoning
that
The aspects regulated by the Deparument of
Transportation pertain to the physical requirements
or manner in which hazardous materials must be
transported by one who has a license. Hence, the

+2138843823 T-333 P.11/23 F-561
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"aspect" governed by the Secretary of Treasury
under 18 U.S.C. § 841 er seq is who may
transport, manufacture, eic.  The aspect regulated
by the Department of Transportation is sow items
may be wansported once the ransporter oblains a
license.  In the present casc, therefore, the 18
U.S.C. § 845 exclusion does not apply since the
defendants were not charged with any offense
concemning any aspect regulated by the Department
of Transportation.

Id, at 466-67. The Scharszein decision 1s contrary 1o
the holding in Jilingworth.

[1}[2] The defendant contends § 845 is clear,
unambiguous and that it should be given its plain
meaning. There is & strong presumption that Congress
expresscs its intent through the language it uses, /NS v.
Cardoza- Fonseca, 480 U.S. 421,432, 107 S.Ct. 1207,
1213, 94 L.Ed.2d 424 (1987). When the language 18
clear, courts should consider legislarive hisrory only to
determine whether there is  clearly expressed
legislative history to the contrary.” U.S. v. Geyler, 932
F.2d 1330 (9th Cir.1991). The only legislative history
relating 10 § 845 suggests a different intent but falls
short of a clearly expressed legislative intent necessary
to override plain language in the statute.

In contrast to the defendant's position that the statute is
not ambiguous, the Government's attorney conceded at
oral argumnent that there is "perhaps an ambiguity” in §
845 and argued that the exception should be read as if
the statute used the word "is" rather than the word
"are" in 18 U.S.C. § 845(a)(1). So read, the statute
would exempt "any aspect of the wansportation of
explosive materials ... which [is ] regulated by the ...
Department of Transportation.” The Government
relies on the legislative history which provides that
This chapter is not meant o affect aspects of the
transportation of explosive marterials regulated by
the Department of Transportation.

Amachment 1 to Government's bnef in response.
docker no. 82. This legislative history refers to
"aspects” of the wransportation of explosive matenals
and lends support to the Govermment's posiuon
However, cven the legislative history is not a madel of
logic or clarity. Further, the legislative history appears
contrary 1o the plain language of the statute. A proper
grammatical reading of the e¢xcepuon results m an
intcrpretation that provides thar if the explosive
materials transported wvia air “are” regulated, the
cxception applies.  In conmast, a complete reading of
18 *798(Cite as: 309 F Supp 794, *798) U.S.C. § 841
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et seq. and 49 U.S.C.App. § 1472 et seq. and the
regulations promulgated under these statutes, strongly
suggests that Congress intended to except only aspects
of the transportation of explosive materials which were
regulated by the Departument of Transportation.
Although this Court questions whether § 845(a)(1) "
clearly provide[s]" for anything, the Court finds that a
careful grammarical apalysis of the exception does
support the defendant's position. Inartfully drafred, §
845(a)(1) states that Chapter 40 shall not apply o "any
aspect of the wransportation of explosive materials ...
which are regulated by the United States Department
of Transportation and agencies thereof...." 18 US.C. §
845(a)(1) (emphasis added).

[3] The Court must interpret the meaning of the words

used by Congress. Clearly, many aspects of
transporting explosive matenials are regulated by the
United States Dcpartment of Transportation.  The
Department of Transportation regulations expressly
prohibit the wausporting of PETN by commercial
aircraft. 49 CFR. 172101 The Government,
however, properly directs the Court to the charge
against this defendant which  prohibits  the
transportation of explosive materials without a license
or permit.  The Government argues that "there is no
question” that the conduct set forth in Count I is
regulated by the Deparument of Treasury as it is the
"status” of the defendant as a person without a license
or a permit 1o transport explosive materials by air in
foreign commerce which is the gravamen of the
offense Government's Brief at pp. 9-10.  Although the
Government! is correct as o the nature of the charge, it
is incorrect with respect to the gravamen of the
defendant's conduct. Mr Petryvkievicz camried one (1)
pound of PETN in his luggage from London, England
1o Seartle, Washington on a commercial aircraft. The
clear gravamen of the conduct 1s the transportation of
these explosive matenals rather than whether or not he
had a license from the Department of Treasury. Even
if the defendant had obrained such a license, the
defendant was prohibited from transporting the
materials on the aircraft by the Deparument of
Transportation regulations.  Ultimately, the focus must
be on the language of the statute rather than the
gravamen of the offense. In the absence of the
exception provided in § 845 of Title 18, the defendant
could have been charged and convicted under either 18
US.C. § 842 or 49 U.S.C.App. § 1472. Unired Stares
v Baichelder, 442 U.S. 114, 99 S.Ct. 2198, 60 L.Ed.2d
755 (1979); Scharsrein, 531 F.Supp. at 465

To reach the result urged by the Government, onc
would have to read the exception mn § 845(a)(1) as it 1t

+2138843923 T-333 P.12/23 F-5B!
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stated that Chapter 40 shall not apply to "any aspect ...
which is regulated by the United States Department of
Transporwmtion..." However, § 845(a)(1) uses the
plural "are" instead of the singular “is” in the phrasc
"which are regulated.”  The phrase can therefore
modify only the plural "explosives" and not the
singular "aspect.” If Congress meant to exempt from
Chapter 40 "any aspect of the wansportation of
explosive materials ... which is regulated by the United
States Department of Transportation” it could have
done so. Instead, Congress stated that Chapter 40
shall not apply to "any aspect of the transportation of
explosive materials ... which are regulated by the
Department of Transportation.”  PETN and safety
fuses arc explosive materials which are regulated by
the Department of Transportation.

The Government argues thar such a reading of the
exception would make meaningless the licensing
regulations contained in 18 U.S.C. § 841 er seq. and
the regulations of the Department of the Treasury.
Thus, the Government, relying upon Scharsiein, wants
to focus on the word "aspect.”

This Court concludes that the exception contained in
18 U.S.C. § 845 is ambiguous. Although a focus on
the words "any aspect” or "aspect” would support the
Government's position if the statute had used the word
"are,” a focus on the entire exception, giving effect
the words used, more strongly supports the defendant's
position. The Court concludes that it must apply the
words used by Congress in their entirety.

*799 (4] In order to rule in favor of the Government,
the Court would also have 1o ignore a cardinal rule of
statutory construction. The rule of lenity requires that
"where there is ambiguity in a criminal statute, doubts
are 1o be resolved in favor of the defendant." Geyler,
932 F.2d at 1336 (ciung United Stares v. Bass, 404
U.S. 336, 348, 92 S.Ct 515, 523, 30 L.Ed.2d 483
(1971)). Applying the rule of lenity to this case, the
Court must construe § 845 in favor of the defendam
and conclude that the transportanon of rAese explosive
materials 15 regulated by the
Transportaton, thereby
applicable.

Deparmment ol
making the excepuon

The Government makes onc final argument in support
of 1s position. It argues thar the defendant has becn
charged with wansportanon of explosive matenals :n
foreign commerce, that the defendant moved the
materials beforc he boarded the aireraft in England and
after be exited the plane m Seanle. and that these
activities do not consutute forcign commerce and arc
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not regulated by the Departument of Transportation.
The Government is mistzken.  The Department of
Transportation regulations relate o “foreign air
commerce” which is defined as including comimerce
which moves wholly by aircraft or partly by aircraft
and partly by other forms of transportation from any
place outside the United States 10 2 place in the United
Stetes. 49 U.S.C.App. § 1301(23); 49 US.C.App. §
1802(2).

IIL
CONCLUSION

In conclusion, the Department of Transportation

regulates many aspects of the transportaion of

explosive materials. Section 845 of Title 18 excludes
the application of Chapter 40 of Tide 18 if the
explosive materials being wansported are regulated by
the Dcparmment of Transportation. Applying the
exception in this case requires the Court 0 grant the

+2138843823 T-333 P.13/23 F-581
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defendant's motion to dismiss Count I.  For the .same
reasons, Count II must also be dismissed. The
criminal violations alleged in Count I of the Indictment
underlie the importation count in Count II.  See United
States v. Parel 762 F2d 784, 790 (9th Cir.1985)
(outlining four elements of crime of smuggling
contrary 1o law, as set out in 18 US.C. § 545
Current v. United Srates, 287 F.2d 268, 269 (Sth
Cir.1961) (holding that the Government must allege
which law the defendant's action was contrary o}
The Govermnment charges in Counmt II that the
defendant's actions were contrary to §§ 841(c) and (d),
842(2)(3)(A) and 844(a). The exception contained in
§ 845(a)(1) applies with cqual force 1 Count Il which
must also be dismissed.

IT IS SO ORDERED.

END OF DOCUMENT
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placards.

173.504 General placarding requirements.,

172.505 Placarding for subsidiary hazards.

172506 Providing and affixing placarda:
Highway.

172507 Special placarding provisions: High-

WaY.

172.508 Placarding and affixing placarding:
Rail,

172.510 Special placarding provisions: Rail.

172.512 Frelght contalners and alrcraft unit
load devices.

172.514 Bulk packagings.

179.516 Viaibility and display of placards.

172.519 General specificationa for placardz.

1725621 DANGEROUS placard.

172.522 EXPLOSIVES 1.1, EXPLOSIVES 1.2
and EXPLOSIVES 1.8 placarcs.

172.5628 EXPLOSIVES 1.4 placard.

172524 EXPLOSIVES 1.5 placard.

172.526 EXPLOSIVES 1.6 placard.

172.526 [(Reserved]

172.527 Background requirements for cer-
tain placards.

172.528 NON-FLAMMABLE GAS placard.

172.530 OXYGEN placard.

172,532 FLAMMABLE GAS placard.

172.536 [Reserved]

172,540 POISON GAS placard.

172.542 FLAMMABLE placard.

172541 COMBUSTIBLE placard.

173546 FLAMMARBLE SOLID placard.

172647 SPONTANEOUSLY COMBUSTIBLE
placard.

172.548 DANGEROUS WHEN WET placard.
172.550 OXIDIZER placard.

172553 ORGANIC PEROXIDE placard.
172.553 [Reserved]

172.55¢ POISON placard. -
172555 POISON INHALATION HAZARD

placard.
172.556 RADIQACTIVE placard.
172558 CORROSIVE placard.
172.560 CLASS 9 placard.

Subpart G—Emergency Response

informaticn
172.600 Appllcability and general require-
ments.
172.602 Emergency responss information

172.604 Emergency responss lelephone num-
ber.
172.606 Carricr information contact.

Subpart H—Training

172.700 Purpose and scope.

172.701 Fodsral-State roelationahip.

172702 Applicability and responrsibility for
traiping and resting.
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172704 Training requirements.

APPENDDIY. A TO PART 172—OFFICE OF Haz-
ARDOUS MATERIALS  TRANSPORTATION.
COLOR TOLERANCE CHARTS AND TABLES

APPENDIX B TO PART 172—TREFOIL 8YMBOL

APPENDIX C TO PART 172—DIMENSIONAL SPEC-
IFICATIONS POR RECOMMENDED PLACARD
HOLDER

AUTHORITY: 49 U.5.C. 5101-6127; 49 CFR 1.58.

SOUNCE: Amdt. 172-29. 41 FR 15896, Apr. 15.
1976, unless otherwise nored.

Subpart A—General

§172.1 Purposc and scope.

This part lists and classifies those
materials which the Department of
Transportation has designated as haz-
ardous materials for purposes of trans-
portation aad prescribes the require-
mernts for shipping papers, package
marking. labeling, and transport vehl-
cle placarding applicable to the ship-
ment and transportation of those haz-
ardous materials.

{Amds. 172-29, 41 FR 16997, Apr. 15, 1976]

§172.3 Applicability.

(a) This part applies to—

(1) BEach person who offers a haz-
ardous material for transportation, and

(2) Each carrier by air, highway, rail,
or warer who transports a hazardous
material.

(b) When a person, other than one of
those provided for in paragraph (a) of
this section. performs a packaging la-
beling or marking function required by
this part, that person shall perform the
function in accordance with this part.

(amdt. 172-29, 41 FR 1699, apr. 15. 1976. as
amended by amdr. 172-32, 41 FR 38179, Sept.
9. 1976}

Subpart B—Table of Hazardous
Materials and Special Provisions

$172.101 Purpose and use of haz-
ardous materials table.

(a) The Hazardous Materlals Table
(Table) in this section designates the
materials listed therein as hazardous
materials for the purpose of transpor-
tation of those marterials. For each
listed material. the Table identifies the
hazard class or specifies that the mate-
rial is forbidden in transportation, and

axraee

e

research and Speclal |

glves the proper shipp’
rects the user to the )
shipping name. In add
gpecifies or references
this subchapter pertai:
packaging, quantivy I
craft and stowage of ]
rials aboard vessels.
(b} Column 1. Symbols.
Table contains six syp
«p”, @7, T and W
(1) The plus (+) fixes
ping name, hazard ¢k
group for that entry w
whether the material :
tion of that class or i
meets any other hax
tiop. An appropriate
shipping name and has
authorized by the As
trator for Hazardous i
(2) The letter **A” Te
cation of requiremer
chapter t0 Tnaverials
tended for transporta
unless the material is
atance or 3 hazardous
(3) The letter “pn
shipping names whic?
for describing mater
tragsportation but 1
priate for internstior
under the provisions
regulations (e.g., O
pate proper shipping
lected when either 4
national trangportati
(9) The letter “G"
shipping names for @
technical names of t
tertal must be enter
in association with
tion. (See §172.208(X).
(5) The letter T
ghipping names whi
for describing ma
national transporta’
proper shipping nafl
when only domesti
involved
(6) The letter W
cation of requirer
chapter to materi
tended for transport
less the material i
stance or a hazardo
(c) Column 2. Haz
scriptions and Pro]
Column 2 lists the




Apr-04-01

11:11am

From=US DISTRICT COURT

Research and Special Programs Admin., DOT

176.405 Stowage of chrrooal.

176.410 Division 1.5 (blasting agents) mate-
rlals, ammonium nltrate and ammonium
nitrate mixtures.

176 415 Permit requirements for Division 1.5
(blasting agenta), ammonium nitrates,
end certain ammonium nitrate fer-
tilizers.

Subport K [Reserved]

Subpart L—Detailled Requirements for Divi-
sion 2.3 (Polsonous Gas) and Olvision
6.1 (Polsonous) Materials

176.600 General stowage requirements.

176605 Care following leakrage or sifting of
Divigion 2.8 (poisonous gas) and Division
6.1 (poisonous) matverials.

Subpart M—Detailed Requirements for
Radioactive Materials

176.700 General stowage requirements.

176.704 Requirements relating to transport
indexes.

176.708 Segregation distance table.

176.710 Care following leakage or sirting of
radiocactive materiala.

176.715 Contamination control.

Subpart N—Detalled Requirements for
Class 8 (Cowosive Mcterials) Materials

176.800 General stowage requirements.
176.806 On deck stowage.

Subpart O—Defailed Requirements for Cot-
ton and Vegetable Fibers, Motor Vehl-
cles, and Asbestos

176900 Packaging and stowage of cotton
and vegetable fibers; general.

176.901 Stowage of cotton or vegetable fi-
bers with rosin or pitch.

176.903 Stowage of cotton or vegetable fi-
bers with coal.

176.905 Motor vehicles or mechanical equlp-
ment -powersed by internal combustior
engines.

AUTHORITY. 49 U.S.C. 5101-5127; 49 CFR 1.53.

Subpart A—General

$176.1 Purpose and scope.

This part prescribes requirements in
addivion to those contalned in parts
171, 172, and 173 of this subchapter to be
observed with respect to the transpor-
tation of hazardous materials by ves-
se}.

§176.2 Definitions.
Agp used in this part—

+21388430823 T-333

§176.2

Cantline means the v-shaped groove
between two abutting, parallel hori-
zontal cylinders.

Cargo net means a net made of fiber
or wire used to provide convenience in
handling loose or packaged cargo to
and from a vessel.

Clear of living quariers means that the
hazardous material must be located sc
that in the event of release of the ma-
terial, leakage or vapors will not pene-
wate  accommodations, machinery
spaces or other work areas by means of
entrances or other openings in bulk-
heads or ventilation ducts.

Closed freight container means a
freight container which totally en-
clozses it8 contents by permanent struc-
tures. A freight container formed part-
ly by a tarpaulin, plastic sheet, or
aimilar material is not a closed freight
contalner.

Commandant (G-MTH) means the
Chief, Marine Technical and Hazardous
Materials Division, Office of Marine
Safety, 8ecurity and Euvironmental
Protection, United States Coast Guard,
Washington, DC 20593-0001.

Compartment means any epace on a
vesgel that is enclozed by the vessel's
decks and it3 sides or permanent steel
bulkheads.

CSC safety approval plate means the
safety approval plate specified In
Annex I of the International Conven-
tion for Safe Containers (1972) and con-
forming to the specifications in 49 CFR
451.23 and 451.25. The plate is evidence
that a freight contalner was designed,
constructed, and tested under inter-
national rules incorporated into U.S.
regulations in 49 CFR parts 450 through
453, The plate ig found in the door area
of the container

Deck structure means a structure of
subatantial weight and size located on
the weather deck of a vessel and inte-
gral with the deck. This term includes
superstructures, deck houses, mast
houses, and bridge structures.

Draft means a load or combination of
loads capable of being hoisted into or
out of a vessel in a single 1ift.

Dunnage means lumber of not less
than 25 mm (0.98 inch) commercial
thickness or equivalent material lald
over or against strucvares such as tank
tops, decks, bulkheads, frames, plating,

641
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Responsible person means a person
empowered by the master of the vessel
to make all decisions relating to his or
her speclfic task, and having the nec-
essary knowledge and experience for
that purpose.

Safe working load means the max-
imum gross weight that cargo handling
equipment. is approved to lift.

Skilled person means 3 person having
the knowledge and experience to per-
form a certain duty.

Skipbeard means a square or rectan-
gular pallet withoutr sideboards, usu-
ally used in conjunction with a cargo
net to handle loose cargo on board a
vessel.

Splice as used In §176.172 of this part,
means any repair of a freight container
main structural member which re-
placea material, other than complete
replacement of the member.

Transport unit means a Transport ve-
hicle or a freight container. A closed
transport unit means a Transport unit in
which the conteats are totally enclosed
by permanent structures. An open
transport unit means a transport unit
which is not a cleosed transport unit.
Transport units with fabric sides or
tops are not ¢losed transport units for
the purposes of this part.

Tray means a type of pallet con-
atructed to specific dimensions for han-
dling a particular load.

{Amdt. 176-30, 55 FR 52687, Dec. 21, 1950

§1763 Unacceptable hazardous mate-
rials shipments.

(a) A carrier may not transport by
vessel any shipment of a hazardous mea-
terial that 18 not prepared for transpor-
tation in accordance with parts 172 and
173 of this subchapter.

(b) A carrier may not transport by
veasel any explosive or explosive com-
position described in §173.54 of this sub-
chapter

{Amdt. 1761 41 FR 16110. Apr. 15, 1976, as
amended by amdt 176-30, 55 FR 32688, Dec
21. 1990]

§176.4 Port security and safety regula-
tions.

(a) Bach carrler. master, agent, and
charterer of a vedsel and all other per-
sons engaged in handling hazardous
materials on board vessels shall com-

+2138943823 T-334

§1765

ply with the applicable provisions of 33
CFR parts 6, 109, 110, 125, 126, and 160.

(b) Divisien 1.1 and 1.2 (Class A and B
explosive) materials may only be load-
od on and unloaded from a vessel at—

(1) A facility of particular hazard as
defined in 33 CFR 128.05(b);

(2) An explosives anchorage listed in
383 CFR part 110; or

(3) A facllity operated or controlled
by the Department of Defense.

(¢) With the concurrence of the
COTP, Division 1.1 and 1.2 (Class A and
B explosive) materials may be loaded
on or unloaded from a vessel in any lo-
cation acceptable to the COTP.

[Amdt, 176-30. 55 FR 52683, Dec. 21, 1980)

§176.5 Application to vessels.

(a) Bxcept as provided in paragraph
(b) of this section, this subchapter ap-
piies to each domestic or foreign veszel
when in the navigable waters of the
United States, regardless of its chare
acter, tonnage, sfze, or service, and
whether self-propelled or not, whether
arriving or departing, underway,
moored, anchored, aground, or while in

" dry dock.

(b) Thts subchapter does not apply to:

(1) A public vessel not engaged in
commercial service;

(2) A vesszel constructed or converted
for the principal purpose of carryving
flammable or combusatible liquid cargo
in bulk in its own tanks, when only
carrying these liquid cargoes;

(3) A vessel 0f 15 gross tons or small-
er when not engaged in carrying pasa-
sengers for hire;

(1) A vessel used exclusively for
pleasure;

(5) A vessel of 500 gross tons or small-
er when engaged in fisheries;

6) A tug or towing vessel, except
when towing apnother vessel having
Clasz 1 (explosive) materials, Class 3
(flasmmable liquide), or Divisien 2.1
(flasmmable gas) materials, in which
case the owner/operator of the tug or
towing vessel shall make such provi
siong to guard agalnst and extinguish
fire as the Coast Guard may prescribe;

(7) A cable vessel. dredge, elevator
veasel, tfireboatl. icebreaker, pile driver.
pilot boat, welding vessel, salvage ves-
se], or wrecking vessel; or

(8) A foreign vessel transiting the
territorial sea of the United States

643
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§176.89

Note Provision Note Provigion
1E ..cverireeen- | Cargo vesssl, on deck. in contalnars or he  28E ............. | Cargo vessel, when Rems are bansponted
liko. a5 projectilar. O cannidgas for guns, cen-
28 e | CArgo vos30], 00 dock, In portable maga- nons, o monars, notes 1€ anc 7E are

5€ .-

BE ...
9E ...

10E .

11E .

zinas.

-- | Cargo veszel. on deck, secured b the ves-

sof's strucwre,

. | Gargo vessel, under deck, Magazine, Type
A

. | Cargo vessel, under deck, Maguzine, Typo
B

Camo vo330l, under deck, Magazine. Typa
c

Curbo wasgel, under deck, Ordinary Siow-
age. :

. Cargo'vssasl. under deck, Speclal Stowage.

Peszenger vesssl, mowage ae for cargo
vessel,

Magazine, Type B, It In eftectively sealed
duzst-tight packages: otharwiea, Magazine,
Typo A.

On-dock pontable magazine must be stoel,

2E .

13E vereeneen

ME

15E ..

I8E

18 L

Stownge as apecitiod by Competent Author-

On deck, in comainerz not sxeeeding 2.5
metic fon gross por comainor or group,
There may not be more Man 2 such con-
winers or groupe; they must be separatad
from each other. ang from any omher ex-
ploshe substance or articie by Al least 8
m (30 feey). Coneiners or groups must be
at jeast 9 m (30 feat) from the dridga or
accommodation.

On deck, in steel ponadie magazines or
e10al freight containers.

On-deck, consainers must be leakproof.

On deck, In conminars of sheeted stacks.
The groes walght of mach =ack of group
of coniners may not exceed 2.5 metric
ton. Thame may not ba more than 2 stacks
or groups of comminers; thay must De
separgied from gach omer, and fom any
ater axplosive substancer or articles by
at least 8 m (30 feet). Sucks or con
tiners must de at least 8 m (30 tept) from
the bridge or accommadation.

On dock slowago is rocommaended,

For imemational shipments, stow In Te
£aMmA Manner as i required for “car
tridgas for weapons’ inon projectlie” UN
0012. Division 1.4S.

Subsances which contain ammonium risate
of othor ammonium saks must be Slowed
“away lrom” Explogives. Blasting, Typa C,
UN 0083

Stow in accordance wim §176.84(c)3) of
this subchaptor

Cargo cpace vemilation must bo cavafulty
controlled o avold excessive conhdensa-
tion,

May not be siowed togother with oxplosive
sUDSIANCEs comalning ammonium nitrate
or othar ammonium sals.

Segregate from other Class 1 {explosive)
marenals ih e same manner as is re-
quired for Yammable fiquids,

Passongor vossols, on deck or under deck,
In pofabla magazines only.

Pasgengar vesssis, in cormainarg or the liko,
on dock anty.

. | Carga vossal, on dock, in conwiners or he

like {nan.matalii¢ lining i= nocaszsary # not
in senled dust tight packages),

... | Cargo vassel, on deck. In conainerz or the

fika {non-metallic tning is nocossary).

665

appiicabla. All other times, notee 14E,
I5E, and &€ arv applicadle.

(3) Explosive articles deaigmated by
special provision “20E" in column 10B
of the 172.101 table must be stowed as
followa:

(1) Projectiles for guns, camnon, or
mortars:

(A) On-deck. in containers or the like.

(B) Under deck: ordinary stowage.

(1i) All other types:

(A) On deck: in steel portable maga-
Zines or steel freight containers which
are capable of preveanting leakage of
their contents.

(B) Under deck: Special stowage.

[Amat. 176-30, 655 FR 52693, Dec. 2. 1890, as
amended at 56 FR 66282, Dec. 20. 1991: Amdr.
17643, 62 FR 24742, May 6, 1997)

Subpart E—Special Requirements
for Transport Vehicles Loaded
with Hazardous Materials ond
Transporfed on Board Ferry
Vessels

£176.88 Application.

The requirements in this subpart are
applicable to transport vehicles con-
taipging harzardous materials being
transported on board ferry vessela and
are in addition to any prescribed else-
where in this szbchapter. Vessels in a
service similar to a ferry service, but
not, over a designated ferry route, may
be treated as a ferry vessel for the pur-
pose of this subpart {f approved in writ-
ing by the District Commander.

fAmdt. 176-1, 41 FR 16110. Apr. 15, 1976, as
amended by Amdt. 176-14, 41 FR 40690, Sept.
20, 1976}

§176.89 Control of transport vehicles.

(a) A transport vehicle containing
hazardous materials may be trans-
ported on board a ferry vessel, subject
to the following conditions:

(1) The operator or person in charge
of the vehicle shall deliver to the ves-
sel's representative a copy of the ship-
ping papers and certificate required by
£§176.24 and 176.27:
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§176.90

(2) The vehicle shall be placed at the
location indicated by the vesasel’s rep-
resentative;

(3) The parking brakes of the vehicle
ahall be set securely to prevent move-
ment,;

(4) The motor of a highway wvehicle
shall be shut off and not restarted until
the vessel has completed its voyage
and docked;

(6) All vehicle lights shall be cut off
and not relighted until the vessel has
completed its voyage and docked;

(6) The operator of a highway vehicle
shall remain with the vehicle;

(7) No repairs or adjustments must be
made 1o the vehicle while it is on the
vessel;

(8) No hazardous materials are to be
released from the vehicle; and

(9) Any instructions given by the ves-
sel's representative during the voyage,
and during “‘roll on’’ and '‘roll off”’ op-
erations must be observed.

(b) 8moking by any person in or
around a vehicle i8 prohibited.

$176.90 Private automobiles.

A private automobile which iz car-
rving any Class 1 (explosive) material
(except permitted fireworks or small
arms ammunition) may not be trans-
ported on a passenger-carrying ferry
vesgel unless the Class 1 (explosive)
material is in compliance with pack-
aging, labeling, marking, and certifi-
cation requirements of this subchapter.
Permitted fireworks and amall arms
amrmunition may be carried without
the required packaging, labeling,
marking, or certification if they are in
tight containers.

{Amdt. 176-1, 41 FR 16110, Apr. 15. 1976, as
amended by Amdt. 176-30, 55 FR 52695. Dec.
21. 1890]

§176.91 Motorboats.

A motorboat may be transported oan
board a ferry vessel with gasoline in
the tank and two other containers not
exceeding 23 1. (six gallons) capacity
sach {f they are in the motorboat,
closed, and in good condition.

[Amdt. 176-1. 41 FR 16110, Apr. 15, 1976. as
amended by Amdzt, 176-30. 55 FR 52693, Dec.
21, 1980}
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$176.92 Cylinders laden in vehicles.

Any cylinder of Class 2 (compreassed
gas) material which is required to have
a valve protection cap fitted in place
may be transported on board a ferry
vessel without having the valve protec-
tion cap in place when it is laden in a
transport vehicle and is mot removed
from the vehicle while on the vesasel.

[Amdt. 176-1, 41 FR 16110, Apr. 16, 1576. a3
emended by Amdt. 176-30, 55 FR 52695, Dec.
21, 1990]

§176.93 Vehicles having refrigerating
or heating equipment.

(a) A transport vehicle fitted with re-
frigerating or heating equipment uaing
a flammable liguid or Division 2.1
(flammable gas) material, or diesel oil
as fuel, may be transported on a ferry
vessel. However, the refrigerating or
heating equipment rnay not be oper-
ated while the vehicle i3 on the vessel,
unless the equipment compliea with
the following requirements: .

(1) The installation is rigidly mount-
od and free .of any movement other
than normal vibration in operation;

(2) An easily accessible shutoff con-
trol is fitted to the fuel and electrical
supply of the refrigerating or heating
equipment; and

(3) The fuel storage tank, the fuel
lines, the carburetor and any other fuel
devices are vight and show no signs of
leakage. )

(b) If the vehicle operator desires to
operate the refrigerating or heating
equipment while on the vessel and the
equipment i3 not fitted with antomaric
starting and stopping devices, it must
be started before the vehicle {8 taken
on board. It may continue In operaticn
while the vehicle ia on the vessel, but if
the motor stops it may not be re-
gstarted.

(c) In the case of a ferry vessel on a
voyage exceeding 30 minutes' duration,
stowage must be provided for transport
vehicles having refrigerating or heat
ing equipment operated by internal
combustion engines which will permit
ready diffusion of exhaust gases to the
open alr. Passenger vehicles may not
be stowed in a position adjacent to ve
hicles operating internal combustion
motors whickh expose the occupants of
the passenger vehicles to excessive
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UNITED STATES of America, Appellee,
V.

Ronald Lee ILLINGWORTH, Appellant.
No. 73-1207.

Argued and Submitted Aug. 15, 1973,
Decided Dec. 14, 1973.

Defendant was convicted before the United States
District Court for the District of Colorado, Alfred A.
Arraj, Chief Judge, of wansporting explosives across
state lines without permit, and he appealed. The Court
of Appeals held that defendant could not be prosecuted
for such offense in view of clearly provided exceprion
10 application of staturte under which he was charged.

Judgment vacated and case remanded wiath directions,
West Headnotes

Explosives €24
164k4

Accused, who carried dynamite on airplane flights,
could not bec prosccuted under statute proscribing
ransportation of explosives across state lines without a
permit, in view of provision rendering such statute
inapplicable to "any aspect of the transportation of
explosive materials via * * * air which are regulated
by the United States Department of Transportation and
agencies thereof' and fact that Federal Aviation
Administration had promulgated regulation which
excluded dynamite from range of explosives that could
be carried on passenger-carrying aircrafr. 18 U.S.C.A.
§§ 842, 842(a)(3), 845, 845(a)(1); Federal Aviation
Act of 1938, §§ 601(a)(6), 902(h)(1), 49 US.C.A. §%
1421(a)(6), 1472(h)(1); Department of Transportation
Act, § 2(e)(1), 49 US.C A § 16352(e)(1)

*264 Philip M. Jones, Lew:s, Jones & Ellwood,
Denver, Colo., for appellant.

*265 Stephen M. Duncan, Sp. Asst. US. Amy. (James
L. Treece, U.S. Afty.,, with him on the bricf), for
appellee.

Before HILL, BARNES [FN1] and SETH, Circuil
Judges.

FN1. Senior Circuit Judge, of the Ninth
Circurm, sitling by designation
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PER CURIAM.

Ronald Lee Ilingworth appeals from a jury verdict
finding him guilty of having violated the provisions of
18 US.C. § 842(a)(3), by unlawfully transporting
explosives across state lines withour a permit required
by law. Illingworth appears to have taken an airplane
flight from Pocatello, Idaho, to Salt Lake City, Utah,
and then taken another flight from Salt Lake City 1o
Denver, Colorado, while carrying 2 handbag containing
dynammte. His expressed reason for this enterprise was
to help his father blow up some wee stumps ar the
latter's farm 1n Iowa. He disclosed the contents of the
bag to ticket agents at the Denver airport,

18 US.C. § 842 under which the prosecution was
commenced is part of Chapter 40 of that ttle of the
United States Code; s0, 100, is section 845 of Title 18,
which provides that:

'(a) Except in the case of subsections . . . of section
844 of this title, this chapter shall not apply 10:

‘(1) any aspect of the transporation of explosive
materials via . . . air which are regulated by the United
States Deparmment of Transportation and agencies
thereof; . . .

Thus the question arises whether appellant could be
prosecuted under section 842 in the face of the above
exception to its application. The exception refers to
materials which are regulated by the Department, and
not necessarily prohibited.

The Federal Aviation Administratioa is an agency of
the Department of Transportation (49 U.S.C. §
1652(¢)(1)). and under 49 U.S.C. § 1421(2)}6), the
Adrmimstrator of the Federal Aviation Administration
1s empowcred and required to prescribe ‘such
reasonable rules and regulations =~ govemning other
practices, methods and procedure, as (he) may find
necessary 10 provide adequately for nanonal secunity
and safety in arr comnerce’ This he has done. These
regulations pertain to the carrying or wansporting of
explosives by civil aircrafr in the Uniied States  See 14
CI.R. § 1037 (1973); Underwriers ar Llovd's of
London v. Cordova Airlines, Inc.. 283 F.2d 659 (9th
Cir.).  These regulations relae w0 persons carrying
certain dangerous articles on board passenger-carrying
aircraft; these dangerous articles, in turn, are defined t
include cxplosives of the type carried by Hlingworth.
While the applicable regulations are 'not a parason of
logical organmization of graphic lucidity’ 2%3 F2d ar
661, it is clear that the dynamite which Hhngworth
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cartied with him on the planes was not only regulated,
but also excluded from the range of 'acceptable’
explosives that, in certain circumstances, could be
carried on board passenger-carrying aircraft, by 14
CFER § 1037 (1973). See 49 CFR. §§ 173.50,
173.51, 173.52, 173.53 (1973).

Additionally, Congress has specifically provided a
penalty for violations of such regulations by enacting
49 US.C. § 1472, subsection (h)(1) of which, in
relevant part, provides:

'Any person who knowingly causes the
ransportation in air commerce, of, amy shipment,
baggage, or property, the transportation of which
would be prohibited by any rule, regulation, or
requirement prescribed by the Administator under
subchapter VI of this chapter, relating to the
transportation . . . of explosives or other dangerous
articles shall, upon conviction thereof for each such
offense, be subject to a fine of not more than $1,000, or
to imprisonynent not exceeding one year, or 10 *266
both such fine and imprisonment; . . ..
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Again the reference is o 'explosives’

Thus, the appeliant could not be prosccuted under 18
U.S.C. § 842(a)(3) by reason of the clearly provided
exception to its application. Explosives ate regulated
by the Administrator of the Fedcral Aviation
Administration, an agency of the Department of
Transportation, in regard 1o their transportation by air.
There is no ambiguity in the statutory exception; nor 1s
there any question of the existence of aliernauve
statutcs open to the prosecution in this case by reason
of the explicit exception in 18 U.S.C. 845(a)(1) to
section 842's application. Congress has provided this
exceplion to permit regulation by appropriate
authorities and they have done so. Congress has also
provided for penaltes for violation of Tthese
regulations.

The judgment is vacated, and the case is remanded
with direcrions 1o dismiss the indietment. This action
constitures no bar to a proper indictment.
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